HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
May 13, 2003
4:08 PM

TAPE HFC 03 — 90, Side A
TAPE HFC 03 - 90, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 4:08 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative John Harris, Co-Chair
Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Vice-Chair
Representative Berkow tz
Representative M ke Chenault
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Kerttul a

Representative Carl Mses
Representative Bill Stoltze
Representative Ji m Wit aker

VEMBERS ABSENT

No menbers were absent.

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Lesil MCGuire; Joel Gl bertson, Conm ssioner,
Department of Health & Social Services; Bob Labbe, Deputy
Director, Departnent of Health and Social Services; Stacy
Kraly, Departnment of Law, Vern Jones, Chief Procurenent
Oficer, Depart ment of Adm ni strati on; St acy Kraly,
Assi stant Attorney General, Departnent of Law, Scot Hawki ns,
Al aska Supply Chain Integrals.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

There were no tel econference participants.

SUMVARY

HB 216 "An Act relating to nunicipal taxation of refined
fuel products.”
HB 216 was post poned.

HB 244 "An Act relating to the Code of Crimnal

Procedur e; relating to defenses, affirmative
defenses, and justifications to certain crimnal

House Fi nance Committee 1 05/13/03 4: 08 PM



HB 267

HB 313

SB 109

acts; relating to rights of prisoners after
arrest; relating to discovery, imunity from
prosecution, notice of defenses, admssibility of
certain evidence, and right to representation in
crim nal proceedings; relating to sentencing,
probation, and discretionary parole; anmending Rule
16, Al aska Rules of Crimnal Procedure, and Rul es
404, 412, 609, and 803, Alaska Rules of Evidence;
and providing for an effective date.”

HB 244 was post poned.

"An  Act relating to the Alaska Railroad,
authorizing the Alaska Railroad Corporation to
provi de fi nancing for t he acqui sition,
construction, inprovenent, maintenance, equipping,
or operation of facilities for the transportation
of natural gas resources within and outside the
state by others; authorizing the Al aska Railroad
Corporation to issue bonds to finance those
facilities; and providing for an effective date."

HB 267 was post poned.

"An Act authorizing a pilot program relating to
state procurenent and the use of electronic
commerce tools; and providing for an effective
date."

HB 313 was REPORTED out of Commttee with no
recommendation and with a new zero fiscal note by
t he Departnent of Adm nistration.

"An Act repealing the statute that sets priorities
for the Departnent of Health and Social Services
to apply to admnistration of the nedical
assi stance program when there are insufficient
funds allocated in the state budget for that
program authorizing the departnment to nmake cost
contai nnent decisions that may include decisions
about eligibility of persons and availability of
servi ces under the nedical assistance program and
providing for an effective date."

CSSB 109 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Conmttee with
a "do pass" recommendation and wth previously
published fiscal note: #1 HSS.

CS SB 128(FIN) am

"An Act relating to licensing commobn carriers to
di spense al coholic beverages; and providing for an
effective date."

House Fi nance Committee 2 05/13/03 4: 08 PM



CS SB 128(FIN) am was REPORTED out of Committee
wth a "do pass” recommendation and wth
previously published fiscal note: #2 REV.

#sb109

SENATE BILL NO. 109

"An Act repealing the statute that sets priorities for
the Departnent of Health and Social Services to apply
to admnistration of the nedical assistance program
when there are insufficient funds allocated in the
state budget for that pr ogr am aut horizing the
departnment to nake cost containnment decisions that may
i nclude decisions about eligibility of persons and
avai lability of services under the nedical assistance
program and providing for an effective date."

Co-Chair Harris MOVED to ADOPT the Commttee Substitute,
Wrk Draft 23-GS1124\H. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

JOEL d LBERTSON, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH &
SOCI AL SERVI CES, spoke in support of the legislation. He
stressed that the legislation is needed for the Departnent
to nove forward in the prudent adoption of cost contai nnment
measures, which would allow it to neet the legislative
mandate for fiscal accountability while mnimzing the

inpact on Medicaid beneficiaries. Intent |anguage was
nodified and is consistent with the Departnent’s intent to
develop a preferred drug Ilist that is responsive to

clinical evidence. It would also develop an authorization
system which would allow providers to prescribe drugs
outside of the preferred drugs in each drug class. He
observed that the Conmttee had held hearings on the House
version of the bill

Co-Chair Harris asked if the bill had been discussed wth
phar maceuti cal conpanies. The Comm ssioner did not perform
that duty.

Vice-Chair Meyer referred to line 2 of the intent |anguage
and asked if “all” was appropriate. Conm ssioner G | bertson
explained that the section clarifies that the drugs are
Medi caid approved nedications. This is a snaller subset
than “all pharmaceutical products available for sale in the
United States”. The Medicaid program or Al aska s nedical
systens program does not necessarily cover a product sinply
because it is an approved pharnmaceutical product. It would
al so need to be on the national negotiated fee rate system
Each drug conpany negotiates with the federal governnent to
establish a nation drug rebate schedule for states that
participate in the Medicaid Program The Medicaid program
at a state |level does not cover a drug unless it has been
approved at the federal |evel. He noted that drugs, which
are specifically excluded from the Medicaid program such

House Fi nance Committee 3 05/ 13/ 03 4:08 PM



as abortion drugs, which are not wunder the federally
approved program cannot be prescribed.

Representative Kerttula MOVED Anendnents #1: 23-GS1124\A. 2

Co-Chair WIllianms OBJECTED. Representative Kerttula
expl ai ned that Amendnent 1 would address the del egation of
authority issue. The amendnent would force the Departnent
to bring the list to the Governor so that budgetary
deci sions could be made. The Departnent would not be able

to elimnate a group wuntil all optional services were
el i m nat ed. The Legislative Affairs Agency’'s attorneys
indicated that the bill m ght over del egate |egislative.

Comm ssioner Gl bert stated that the Adm nistration did not
support the anmendnent. The anendnent allows a new priority
list to be set in statute a year in advance. He stressed
that it would be nore responsive to nake the decision when
t he budget deficit in the Medicaid programis determ ned. He
mai ntai ned that the list should be nore ongoing to be nore
responsive. He indicated that the list would be created in
response to current deficits, in order to achieve savings
and mnimze inpacts. He observed that the anendnent woul d
require that all optional services be elimnated before an
optional eligible group could be elimnated. He acknow edged
that eligible individuals should be protected, but pointed
out that the anmendnent would require that wheel chairs and
prosthetics be elimnated before eligibility guidelines for
hi gher earning individuals could be affected. He maintained
that this was not feasible and harnful to recipients and
stressed that the systemis fl awed.

Representative Kerttula noted that the anmendnent is geared
toward providing the information wth enough tine to
scrutinize decisions and address the delegation of
authority.

STACY KRALY, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF LAW

testified via teleconference. She stated that the
Departnent of Law did not feel that the bill would create
an indefensible delegation of authority. She noted that

the central issue was whether the legislation would pass
| egislative authority on to an agency Wwthout any

limtations on the inplenentation of the authority. She
noted that there were a variety of state and federa
limtations, which govern the Medicaid program She

concluded that the issues related to the Medicaid program
prevented prioritizing to address budget shortfalls w thout
addressing statutory and regulatory Ilimtations. The
|l egislation limts the discretion of the Departnent in
regards to the inplenmentation of cost contai nnment neasures.
She asserted that the legislation is an appropriate
del egation, providing an agency with a vary specific area
of expertise the authority to adm nister a program

House Fi nance Committee 4 05/13/03 4: 08 PM



Representative Kerttula asked if there is any |aw that

woul d define the order in which cuts would occur. Ms.
Kraly acknowl edged that there is no conpanion Ilist, but
pointed out that there are limtations regarding the
coverage of optional services. Individual determ nations
woul d occur, rather than a category of services. She

stated that there was no list in federal or state |aw, but
that there were limtations pertaining to individuals.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Berkowi tz, Kerttula, Moses
OPPOSED: Chenaul t, Hawker, Meyer, Harris, WIIlians

Representatives Foster, Stoltze and Witaker were absent
fromthe vote.

The MOTI ON FAI LED (3-5).

Representative Kerttula MOED Anendnent #2. Co- Chair
Wl lianms OBJECTED.

Representative Kerttula stated that the anmendnent contains
a notice provision, which would require the Departnent to
notify individuals that are inpacted at |east 60 days
before coverage woul d be denied by witten notice.

Comm ssioner Gl bertson agreed that there should be notice
provi sions, but pointed out that there are already a host
of notice requirenents under the Medicaid program There is
a mninum 30 days public notice period and a m ni nrum 30- day
waiting period before the regulation change can occur. He
estimated that it already takes 90 to 120 days for a change
[in regulations] to occur. He stated that under federal
| aw, participants have to receive a 10 ten day notice on
adverse actions if service is denied, term nated, reduced
or required. He concluded that federal l|aw and state
regul ati ons addressed notice for changes in service.

Representative Berkowtz clarified that a 10-day notice is
required [for the denial of service] and asked if there was
a reason not to give nore notice.

BOB LABBE, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL
SERVI CES, pointed out that the participants would probably
receive two notices. Individual case actions typically
required a ten-day notice, but broad category changes
generally received a longer notice. He reiterated the ten-
day m ni num under federal |aw.

Representative Berkowitz asserted that, in a rural state,

ten days was not adequate. He stressed that people m ght
not be contacted in time to make alternative arrangenents.

House Fi nance Committee 5 05/ 13/ 03 4:08 PM



He proposed that the state of Al aska be nore courteous than
the requirenents under federal |aw

Comm ssioner Gl bertson responded that there are anple

notice requi renents under f eder al law and state
regul ations. The regul ation process would take |onger than
si xty days. He pointed out that Iarger changes would

requi re | onger notice.

Representative Berkowtz asked the tinme frame for notifying
i npacted individuals. M. Labbe stated that i ndividua
cases were given a 10-day notice. General changes would
have a mninumthirty-day notice. He added that regul ation
changes would be necessary. He speculated that a |onger
process mght require [the Departnment to institute] |arger
reductions due to delay [in savings] and a lack of
efficiency.

Representative Kerttula pointed out that a regulation
notice was very different than a notice to the participant

that they are losing a benefit. She observed that there
was little information about the nature of notice received
by i ndividuals. She suggested that a witten notice was

easy enough, and maintained that a witten notice would not
be onerous.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Berkow tz, Kerttula, Moses
OPPOSED: Foster, Stoltze, Hawker , Meyer, Harris,
WIIlians

Representatives Chenault and Whitaker were absent from the
vot e.

The MOTI ON FAI LED ( 3-6).

Co-Chair Harris MWED to report CSSB 109 (FIN) out of
Comm ttee W th t he acconpanyi ng fiscal not e.
Representative Kerttul a OBJECTED.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Berkow tz, Kerttula, Moses
OPPOSED: Foster, Stoltze, Hawker , Meyer, Harris,
WIIlians

Representati ves Chenault and Whitaker were absent from the
vot e.

CSSB 109 (FIN) was REPORTED out of Committee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with previously published fisca
note: #1 HSS.

#hb313

House Fi nance Committee 6 05/ 13/ 03 4:08 PM



HOUSE BILL NO. 313

"An Act authorizing a pilot programrelating to state
procurenent and the use of electronic commerce tools;
and providing for an effective date.”

REPRESENTATI VE LESI L MCGUI RE, SPONSOR spoke in support of HB
313. The legislation would |look at the state of Alaska’s
procurenent process. This is the overhead portion of
gover nnment : buy and selling. The legislation would
stream i ne procurenent through e-conmerce tools.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer asked the potential savings. Representative
McCQuire estimated that there would be between $5 and $20
mllion dollars in overall savings. The pilot program woul d
start with two distinct departnments and two distinct areas
to see if the savings can be proved over a three-year
period. She felt that the savings would be closer to $20
mllion.

I n response to a question by Vi ce-Chair Meyer,
Representative MQ@iire stated that there is an Al askan
conpany, which is very advanced in procurenent, particularly
in the North Sl ope. She noted a Al askan preference.

Vice-Chair Meyer expressed his support of the bill. He
asked if the bill would follow Alaskan guidelines for
hiring, for exanple in hiring veterans, etc. Representative
McQuire responded that the selection of the out source
conpany woul d be inplenented under the existing procurenent
code. There is an exception for the pilot programto allow
the comm ssioner of Admnistration as nuch flexibility as
possible using the principle set out in the procurenent
code. She noted that British Petroleum (BP) has simlar
procurenent policies. An on-line action was created [for BP]
with their procurenent policies.

Represent ati ve Hawker asked whether the sponsor woul d object
to a friendly anmendnent requiring an annual report by the
vendor. Representative MQire stated that she would not
obj ect.

SCOT HAWKI NS, ALASKA SUPPLY CHAI N | NTEGRALS responded t hat
the intention is to prove the concept and be able to expand
it and denonstrate its value. A report would be inherent in
the intent.

Representative Kerttula noted that the procurenent did not
actually fall under the Al askan procurenent code and asked
why not. Representative MQuire noted discussions with the
Adm ni stration about ways to provide the nost flexibility,
i ncl udi ng purchase orders.

House Fi nance Committee 7 05/13/03 4: 08 PM



VERN JONESS, CH EF PROCUREMENT OFFI CER, DEPARTMENT OF
ADM NSTRATION clarified that the selection of the origina
contractor, that would run the pilot, would be subject to
the procurenment code. The contractors in the pilot would
not be subject to the code.

Representative Kerttula asked why the contractors in the
pilot would not fall under the code. M. Jones stated that
there was a recognition that the state procurenent code was
not designed wth efficiency in mnd. Parts of the
procurenent code are inefficient, entailing tinelines that
the private sector could not follow He speculate that the
intent of the bill was to take advantage of the
efficiencies of the private sector and technol ogi es and not
to saddle the pilot with the inefficient and tinme consum ng
process of governnent.

Representative MQiire enphasized that e-commerce allows
the financial authority to commt and revise purchase
orders as an agent of the state. She nmmintained that for
the pilot program to succeed, it nust have the required
flexibility. She stated that the challenge was to rewite
the entire procurenent code or to allow a pilot programin
a small area to go forward to see if it can work. She
suggested that this nmay precipitate a change to the
procurenent code.

Representative Chenault observed that the fiscal note was
zero and asked about the potential cost.

M. Jones noted that the note was zero since it involves an
el ement of privatization. The idea is that the private
sector is able to use cheaper |abor, run a cheaper process

and obtain cheaper goods and services. He noted that if
the pilot did not result in a savings, it wuld be a
failure.

Representative Chenault maintained that there would be sone
cost involved in putting on the program and asked to know
what it is. M. Jones noted that there are a nunber of
steps before the pilot can be inplenented. The m x of goods
and services purchased by various state agencies would have
to be studied, along with current bids to select a study. A
feasibility study would have to be conducted, per wunion
bar gai ni ng agreenents. He noted that that the feasibility
study would enlighten the potential costs. He acknow edged
that there would be a fee involved for the procurenent, but
stated that wunless the program generated a savings, it
woul d not be undertaken. Representative Chenault stressed
that it would cost sonething to initiate a pilot program
whet her or not the programwas successful.

M. Hawkins noted experience in the private sector, and
observed that conpanies generally worked wthin the

House Fi nance Committee 8 05/ 13/ 03 4:08 PM



exi sting budget for a departnment and denonstrated their
ability to reduce the budget for that activity. Regarding
start wup costs, he stated, that these costs would be
integrated wthin the departnent’s budget. He mai nt ai ned
that the funding was found within the savings. He noted
that if savings were not realized, then the business would
not be undertaken. In response to a question by
Representative Chenault, M. Hawkins confirmed that if
savings are not denonstrated, costs would not incurred.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer observed that the intent is to use Al askan
servi ces where possible. M. Hawkins agreed.

Representati ve Ber kowi t z spoke in support of t he
| egi sl ati on. He observed that the two departnents in which
the pilot program would occur could be quite |arge, such as
the Department of Transportation and Public Facilities or
the Departnent of Health and Social Services. He suggested
that if it were a pilot program it wwuld be a C5
[ procurenent]. Representative MQ@ire responded that the
chief procurenment officer is working closely with the
comm ssioner of Admnistration. They would examne the
potential costs and determne where savings would be
realized. She stated that the intent was to inplenent a
mechanismfor a feasibility study.

M. Jones stressed that there had not been any studies to
target any agencies and noted that a division or office
could be targeted. Oganizational structures nust be
anal yzed. He expressed the hope that a self-contained unit
could be found to use as a test case.

TAPE HFC 03 - 90, Side B

Representative Berkowitz asked if it was possible to node

the program He asked if one could sinply conplete a
conparison for the entire state procurenent, rather than
for two departnents. M. Jones stated that the idea was to
exam ne smaller portions of the adm nistration, since there
were great conplexities and a wide variety of goods and
servi ces. He stated that a test case was desired before
taking broad action. He pointed out that private firns had
| oner | abor costs, and life cycle costs. He stressed that
while a nodel would reflect potential benefit, it mght not
reflect a conplete picture.

Representative Berkowtz referred to the procurenent code,
and pointed out that there were reasons that the governnent
did not operate in the manner of the private sector. He
expressed concern wth deviations from the procurenent
code, and questioned if policy problens were considered in
abandoning the code. M. Jones responded that this was the
reason for a pilot program to prevent w despread out-
sourcing. Policies and procedures for contractors need to

House Fi nance Committee 9 05/ 13/ 03 4:08 PM



be developed; these nmay be nore than that needed for
private sector clients. There is a |lot of due process. The
intent is not to end up with a private sector contractor,
which is operating in the same manner as the state.

Representative McQuire reiterated the commtnent to Al askan

busi ness. She recounted her experience with the Al aska
Suppl y Conpany, and poi nt ed out t hat pr ocur enent
requi renents could be programmed into the process. She

enphasi zed that parts of the state procurenent code would
remai n unchanged and coul d be programmed in.

M. Hawkins explained that the procurenment code requires
three quotes. He noted that the conpany could set up a mni
mar ket pl ace of providers to create a “snmart catal ogue” of
suppliers, chosen to conpete on a regular basis. When
procuring, the electronic system provides the best price
from those providers on any given day. The electronic
process would replace the need to get three quotes by
tel ephone or nmail. He pointed out that the code did not
allow the sane process to realize these savings. He noted
that his conpany would not advocate choosing too large a
pilot program It is inportant that the pilot be
successful and not overreach. The challenge is to right
si ze the program

Representative Stoltze referred to the current procurenent
code and the nunber of changes to it that have been
necessary. He noted the advantage of technol ogical
advances.

Representative Berkowitz asked if any consideration was
given to allowng state procurenent offices to conpete in
t he bidding process. M. Jones stated that this was not
the intent of the bill, but the process did allow for
counter proposals as part of the union bargai ning process.

Representati ve Kerttula expressed concern wth t he
potential amount to be expended w thout any sidebars. She
asked how preferences of the procurenent code mght be
mai nt ai ned.

M. Jones speculated that any policies and procedures
devel oped would be contained in a contract, which the
contractor would be required to adhere to. The presunption
of the bill is that the private sector can achi eve savi ngs,
if it is not encunbered with governnental procedures. He
acknowl edged that there were many preferences that woul d be
difficult to admnister. He did not envision witing
requi renents substantially equivalent to the state system
into the contract.

Representati ve Mdses expressed concern that |egislation was
required to inplenment the pilot program Representative

House Fi nance Committee 10 05/ 13/ 03 4: 08 PM



McCGQuire noted that in discussions with the Adm nistration,
it was decided that this was the proper avenue, since it
proposed potentially large policy changes. She felt that,
in a few years, they would be able to view preferences
contained in the contract.

Representative Berkowtz MOVED to AVMEND Page 2 line 8 of
the bill to delete “wth a person fromthe private sector”.

Vi ce-Chair Meyer OBJECTED. Representative MQCuire observed
that [using the private sector] is the would of the bill.
She clarified that partnershi ps would be included.

Representative Berkow tz explained that the private sector
woul d not be precluded, but that it would allow cities and
ot her entities to participate. Representative Mses
suggested the wuse of “entity”. Representative MQire
expressed opposition to the anendnent.

Co-Chair WIllians OBJECTED to the anendment.

Aroll call vote was taken on the notion.

I N FAVOR: Berkowitz, Kerttul a

OPPCSED: Chenault, Foster, Meyer, Mses, Stoltze,
VWhi taker, WIIlians

Co-Chair Harris was absent fromthe vote.

The MOTI ON FAI LED (2-8).

Representative Foster MOED to report HB 313 out of
Commttee with the acconpanying fiscal note NO OBJECTI ONS

HB 313 was REPORTED out of Committee with no recomendati on
and with a new zero fiscal note by the Departnment of
Adm ni stration.

#

ADJ OQURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 5:19 PM

House Fi nance Committee 11 05/13/03 4: 08 PM



